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(1 ) 

See, thi~ thing is very, very sensitive. 

Now you ~a1k a little bit louder oause a I want a 

understand it you ask any questions. I'm not a going to make a 

long. 

O.K. Fine. No, you make them as long as y~u want. 

(TAPE OFF AND ON) 

All rignt Hr. Maroozzi, a where were you born? 

I was born in a '1'e-rame, Abruszi, Ita1y.-

In Tl!ramo? 

Yes. 

Teramo is the name of a provinoe in Abruzzi, right? 

Provinoe in a ••••••• 

What was the name of the town where 10U were born? 

!eramo •. 

The name of the town was !eramo? 

'1'erame, ",8. 

Terame in tbe provino. of Teramo? 

Proy,inoia. proTinoia ot '1'eramo, yes. 

Uh huh. How about the town, the a little a town where 

you were born? A •••• do you remember the name of the little toWDl? 

You mean a town where I waa bern? 

Yes. 

A ••••• you oan say I was a born in a Kiana. 

Miana? 

JUana, yes, but • stead we oa1l it Teramo. 

Oh, I see. 



Province of Teramo. 

O.K. What year were you born? 

A •••• October 28th, 18 •••• 91. 

1891, October 28? 

Ub. huh. 

Now, a, when you were in Italy as a little boy, did you 

go to schoel? 

Yes sir. 

Now, how old were you when you started Bchool? 

How old when, b.ow old I ••••• I was bout twelve years old. 

About twelve when you started school? 

Uh huh, uh huh. 

And how many years ••••• 

I just a start by mistake. My uncle ••••• 

O.K ••••• 

Told me to a go t~ school. I was a very good. 

Uh huh. 'Why did your uncle want you to go to school? 

Well, a ••••• you know, them days it was in th1s country, 

too, the United States of America, a ••••• like farmers, you know, 

very few go to school. 

Uh huh. Is that wha.t you were, a farmer in Italy? 

What· s that? 

Were you a farmer in Italy? 

Yeh. I was farmer but you see, we had pretty hard luck. 

My mother die, I was nine years old and then I was a l1ttle over 

sixteen when my father die. 

Oh my, that was tough luck. So you started school when 

you were twelve years? 

Uh. 

HOW long did you go to school? 



three years. 

A •••• 1h IJtaly? 

Yes. 

I didn't go long. I went about a I can say bout' a 

Three years? 

Uh huh. 

Well, this ••••• 

BUt in that three years I study all the time. 

Uh huh. O.K. Now when you started school then a this 

was around 1903 or 19 - 4, right? 

Well, I don't remember Just a date but I think that's 

about a ••••• 

That' s, that' s about right. Now a •••• when you were 

not going to school what did you do, work on the farm: 

Work on a farm, yeh. 

Who did the farm belong to? 

I: a forgot the name of tbe a •••• a •••• the owner. 

But it didn't belong to your father or your uncle? 

Oh, we had some land of our own but it wasn't enough 

to. •• • • No, there was twelve 1n tbe fam1ly. 

Twelve? Really? 

There was ten boy and two s1- g1rl. 

Ten boys and two girls? 

Uh huh. 

And did you all work the land? 

Yes sir. 

Now a •••• a ••• you say you went to school when 10U were 

twelve. The scbool you went tn, was it a public school or was it 

§ private school or a cburch school? 



(4) 

I don't quite a remember this a but we only had but. 

a one school over there. No such a thing a as a ••••• parochial 

school or anything like that. 

Well, was it a public school then? 

Public school but they teach •••••• oh •••• like a we 

say a •••• how you say ----------- but they teach that bout the 

a existence GOd, you know a •••••• 

They did teach you bout the existence of God but •••••• 

Yeh, yeh, things like that. Of course, nobody was 

against anything like that.:., like a, like a got in United States of 

America. 

Uh huh. All right now, when you completed your schooling, 

when you finished in three years of schooling that you a, a, attended, 

what did you do then? After you finished scheol, you went to school 

for three years till you were fifteen years old about. 

Well, a.,·a, I was work on farm. 

Uh huh. 

And still I read the books. 

I see. 

Ita.lian books, mostly grammar books. 

In other words ••••••• 

And because I had to work on a farm, you know, when 

my father die and my two borther, the oldest was in United States 

of America. 

Uh huh:. 

And a •••• I study these books and course I had to work 

there in the morning. 

RIght. 

I read in the evening. When I, I wasn't quite eighteen 

when I come over in this country. 
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Oh, so you were almost eighteen years old when you 

came here? 

Huh? 

YOu were almost eighteen years old when you came to 

the United States: 

That's right. 

NOw, you were working on a farm when you came to the 

United States, right? In ether words in Italy, when you left Italy, 

you were working as a farmer? 

A •••• in Italy, yes sir. 

O.K. Why dld you decide to come to the United 8tates? 

Well, a, L did not come in a ••• in a United States 

beoause - in other words I was poor. Nol I was not poor. We work 

and eat like a ••• any other people in this country at the time. But 

r come in this country beca.use a when you lose a father and you, you 

ain't got no mother and my tW€) oldest a brother were here, so we 

come here. I come here to ••• a ••• stay with them. 

When you came here, did your other brothers and sister 

also come? 

You mean a my a two brother? 

Well, no, you said you had your two older brothers 

here in this country? 

Yes sir. 

You were back in Italy with your other brothers and 

sister:s, right? 

Yeh. 

Now, when you came over here, did your other brothers 

and sisters come at the same time that you did? 

One slster, when, one a we left ••• a ••• I left a one 
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sister and one my youngest brother and youngest sister in Italy. 

I see. 

And a M1lia and the oldest sister come here together. 

r see. Now, who did your younger brother and sister 

stay with, your uncle? (Hesitation) The ones that you left in 

Italy, your brother and sister, did they stay with your uncle? 

Stay with my uncle, yeh, ---------- ------- father. 

I see. Now when you left Italy, where did you catch 

the boat, in Naples? 

In a Naples. 

Hew did you get to Naples from Teramo, on the train? 

On, on the train. 

Uh huh. Now when you got to Naples was the train - It m 

sorry - when you got to Naples was the sh1p 1n the port wa1t1ng for 

you? 

Yes sir. 

Did you go right a directly aboard? 

Well, that's about a cc>uple days in Naples. 

Oh, you had to wa1t a couple days? 

Yeh" you had to go through an examination. 

Uh huh. 

And then, of course, a you had to wait because it takes 

time to load it. Sometimes it takes two, three days to load •••• a ••• 

the ship, you know, with merchandise that and of course you wait·. 

after you get on board. Then you go. 

Yes. Did. a, a, do you remember what the name of the 

ship was on which yeu came? 

I don't. 

Was it an Italian ship? 



Yes, yes, It was an Itallan ship. 

It was an Itallan ••••••• 

It was an Itallan name, but a ••••• I guess It was belong 

to Italy. I don't know. 

then? 

O.K. How long did it take to get to the Unlted States? 

Thirteen days. 

Thlrteen? Dld it stop anywhere along the way? 

I think 1t a stopped 1n a S1c1ly. 

In 81cl1y? 

I think It did but I don't remember very good. 

I see. 

But I think lt did and then ~t went d1rect to New York. 

It dldn't stop in Gibraltar, d1d It? 

No. 

It went directly to New York? 

D1rectly to New York, yeh. 

When you got off the ship 1n New York, what happened 

When I got efr in a, in a ship 1n New York •••• a •••• you 

know •••• in a way I was happy, in a way I was stranger. 

Uh huh. 

But there was lot of people. I think there was over 

three, four hundred in the boat which was a lot of people to wait. 

And a •••• when me, when I and my slster come out, there was a lot of 

people there that I know. And one man come in and ask me question. 

I don't understand, know What they mean. This man a put a hand in 

my pocket and pull all the money I had. 

Uh huh. 

And a they took one dollar and they put the rest of the: 

money back in my pocket. And a tap a me on my back and he give me 
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enQugh to eat for the next a two weeks for me and my sister. 

He gave you enough to eat to last for two weeks? 

Two weeks, yes. Belogna, bread, a, everything in there. 

Uh huh. 

Yeh, now them days a ••• the United States of Americ' 

we can no a feel 11ke a that today. The society was geod people but 

a today the society is, is criminal. To take as criminal and the 

cr1m1nal take a place of a soc1ety. All right now, we say now I 

shouldn't say thiS, but in a line I want to expla1n to you the dif­

ference them d.ays and it 1s today. You can go any place here that 

I find in New Castle. All a my days a United States of Amer1ca, all 

the people rfind were gentle people - gentlemen, gentle women. No­

body ever try to mistreat me but still there was a lack of understand­

ing. But when we used to, you know, this use finger, show what you 

wanted •••••• 

Yes, yes. 

And you show 'em with f1nger 11ke this, but a far as a 

be safe 1n the street or home, you were safel 

Now, you said that a ••••• 

Now, today, now I just a come 1n now today - if a 

society was to pay a the expense send a son or a daughter to a uni­

versity or a high school of United States of Americ', this student 

go to the univers1ty or a school not to get an education, they go 

there to raise a heck and they try to teach the teacher all their 

1dea. And that kind of a people today which a society has to sup­

port in the Un1ted States of &meric' allover the a fifty states, 

those kind of a people wbich we pay, the workin' class 'people are 

pay, I th1nk that soc1ety's good people and some ot the people's 

forced to pay this. Now those people, they a1n't got no responsi-



bll1ty. They walk the street without paying any tax. Walkin' 

good society along without paying any, any tax at all and then 

when they get in trouble - which they ask for the trouble - we 

got our police officer, whioh a it serve their duty and which a 

we pay them to do their duty - and when they a callout to dis ••• 

dis ••• dist •••• disturb, you know, the ----- people, try to quiet 

them down if a these a hobos, whioh I oall them·, hobos and a criminal, 

they pick up a brick or shoot at a police officer, the man who do 

that, the hobo who do that, he's a herol But if a police officer 

a act according to the law, try to lock him up and take him before 

the, the court of the law and a they try to a •••• a ••• to rake these 

a hobos up, and when the a ••• a ••• the police try to force these 

people then when they go to court if a the police officer defend 

himself, the police officer a become a criminal in the court -

hear thattJ - a criminal in the court, and the criminal they treat 

as a police officer. 

Yes. 

Because a they got a gang back, you know, put ~he money 

like that. Bo therefore's there's a big difference a today than a 

was them a day when I a come a here. It was sixty some, fifty some 

years ago. 

O.K. N'OY in other words •••••• 

Now, now, a just a minute. When I a come in this a 

country September four a nineteen hundred and ten, that year I had 

to pay a income tax. It was a I_war law with a twenty-five cents. 

Was twenty-five cents. Course was a money them a day. I didn't 

complaint to pay but these people today no pay no tax. 

Uh huh. 

They, they go, go allover the place. Only thing a •••• 

the way that they pay most people, take from, take from only the 
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workin' class of people and the society, and, and give to these a 

criminals. These criminals buy a the guns and bullets to kill the 

law ab1d1n' citizens. 

Yes. 

And the trouble when we, when, when the man that runs 

off1ce, you th1nk the man 1s good, bu~when he get a job every dol­

lar ----- a Wash1ngton.. When they go in there, the first thing they 

do, they, they ra1se l1ttle money to go to place. I'm, I'm not 

cr1t1c1z1ng anybody. 'l'b:1s -1,a, r a just telling what's going on •. 

Then the f1rst th1ng they do, they raise a bout a thousand dollar 

their" ownself and pay to judge and then when they appoint: a judge, 

the majority belongs to the gang. I wouldn't say orim1nal, but you, 

you can understand what I mean. And when a, when ~he man tak1n' 

before the judge, the judge is the lawmaker. They make a law. No 

go by the laws a make to the protect of society of the right of the 

people, the taxpayer which, which a pays to the judge, which a pays 

to everybody. 

Uh huh. Well, you see, •••• you're probably right. 

Now, a, going baok to when you first came here" a how were you re­

oeived when you landed! From what you told me, you were reoeived 

quite nioely. You didn't understand but yet they gave yOQfood 

when you got off the boat. You said they gave ~OU, enough ~ last 

you for a oouple of weeks? 

Oouple weeks. 

Now ••••• 

That was, that was a between me and my sister - one 

dollar. 

Yes, n~w you had two brothers in this country at that 

time. Where were they? 
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Right here in New Castle. 

They were here in New Castle? 

Uh huh. 

Did they meet you 1n New YOrk? 

No sir. They meet me r1ght here 1n New Castle station. 

Really, ' ••••• a. •••••• 

Seven o'clock 1n the morning. 

Really? NOw you got on a tra1n 1n a New York? 

I got on a tra1n and a, we got on the tra1n in New York 

and we got off - I think it was West Ph1ladelphia. I don't know 

whether it-was West Philly or not a but aocord1ng to the way they 

move things a today, I think it was West Philadelph1a. 

Uh huh. 

Thatts a where we get a off. I, I a don't know which 

way the trains run, but anyway then 1n the morning we got on another 

tra1n and we oame 1n New Castle seven o'clook a that morn1ng. And 

my brother oame 1n the train and got us out. 

How d1d you know a what train to get? 

HUh? 

How d1d you know what tra1n to get? 

Well, a, I dontt know what tra1n to get but the good 

people of America them days wh1ch we have a few today, they put a 

number on us. 

Uh huh. 

And aocording to that number we had on us, the conducto~ 

or the stat10n master or some fellow 1n the stat10n know wha~ tra1n 

what we get. We d1dn't ---------- for the train. 

Oh, I~ see. All r1ght now, I •....•... 

You ------- 1t was l1ke when you sh1p someth1ng, you 
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know, you put.. •••• (Laughs). 

You write the address on it. 

That's right. But there was nothing wrong. 

Uh huh. 

Nothing, nobody bother us and everybody try to do 

good except the trouble was in a understanding. 

Now, when your brother came to pick you and your sister 

up, where did he take you? Right into a - he took you into New 

Castle? This is where you came to New Castle. Uh, with whom were 

you staying then? 

What's that? 

With whom did you stay? 

Which a home? 

In whose house did you stay? 

Well, a, my two, my two a, two brothers. 

Oh, they had a house here? 

They had a house ready because a the first was a board 

with some, some a.--------. 

me and my sister was coming. 

ready_ 

Then they rent the house because we were 

They rent that house and was everything 

Oh well, then you had your own house to live in here 

when you first came here1 

Uh huh. 

NOW, with whom did your brothers work1 Where did your 

brothers work? 

PennsylTania Railroad. 

Oh, they both worked on the railroad1 And did they] get 

you a job right away? 

Well~ ! got, I got a job I think forty days after I land, 
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I came a New Castle but not on the railroad. 

Oh really? Where did you get a job? 

Well, it was a manufacture plant by the name of Blucher(?). 

Now they change him into a defense plant up here but now they got 

different name on it. I went up there and there was a few Italian 

workin' there. All kind, you know, Pollack - Polish people and so 

on and a I. went there because I wanted to work and my foreman he 

was, his name was a James a James •••••• I tell you it was James •••••• 

well, a, I a, I got it 1n mym1nd but you know. 

your tongue. 

Yeh, I know how it is. You got it all on the tip of 

And I can't get it out. 

Uh huh. 

Was a very good, but it was a ma.t.ter of understand. So 

the job that he give me th1s was.second day. He give me shovel to 

go in the place where they dry the --------. 

Where they dried what? 

You understand, you know what ------ ------, you know 

where they make steel, you know. 

Where they make steel? 

Where they put them 1n the oven to dry them out in the 

night and pull tem out in the morning and put them in place. 

What's that, steel? 

Yeh, then they call it "steel-in" (?). 

Oh, they're making the molds. 

Yeh. 

Uh huh. 

They a, they give shovel to go there and clean up. Was 

a dust in there, and when I stick a shovel under this a dust, boil up 
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like a, you know, lot of heat under there. 

Uh huh. 

And this was in September. Cut my head oft, my hair. 

A ••• I had plenty of hair them days, you know but •••• (Chuckles) • 

So was a hot in there, but I keep on a work. you know, with the 

shovel and I had to go bout ,ten a twelve a teet te go out to the 

hopper to put 'em in the bucket. So James McBugh ••• a ••• that'was, 

see, that's a boy - Jimmy McHugh and a he come aut and talk to me. 

I don't knew what he's talkin' about and he talk and after awhile 

he went a like this to me. Se., and I say, "Uh uh. he's going t.o 

fire me." That's a what I say to myself. So he go, took me outside. 

And went a like a this. That means a ten a minutes. 

He put his hand up a twioe in front of you in other 

words in order - ten f1ngers, ten minutes. 

That means for me to stay ten minutes outside to 

get a little fresh a1r. 

aga1n. 

Yes. 

then you a go back and work ten minutes and go out 

Uh huh. 

So he took me out and he brought me back. 

Because it was so hot outs1de of that. 

Oh man, 1t was hot 1n there. But see, they under­

stood and he a •••••• 

Yes. 

But, you know, I don't understand what he says. 

So next a day, next a four days I,think, it was pay day. 

Yes. 

So he; he oame round and ask me what was my number. 
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I had number t you know. And a my brother told a me my number- was 

twenty-one. Told me how to say, but I couldn't say rlght, !Ou'see 

for hlm to understand. So he went down and level up the sand on the 

floor. We call them -------, you know where we ------ t and he make 

a slgn on there for me to wrlte the number. So I put twentr-one 

on there. So he glve me my tlcket and tap me on my back and left. 

Very good people, no complaint at all. 

I was lucky. 

Uh huh. They treated you real well? 

Hm? ' 

they treated you very well? 

They could not a treat me better. 

How long dld you work there' 

Three years. 

What did they pay you there when you started? 

I started •••• 80 ••• flfteen cents. 

Now thls was ln what year? What year was this? 

Nlneteen hundred and ten. 

1910 you were making flfteen cents an hour? 

Flfteen cents an hour and the old a people told a me 

Really? 

Because a they start down there six cents, eight cents, 

and ten cents and then it went, went up to twelve, then a fifteen, 

and they, they thought it was big money - which it was them days. 

Yeh, how many hours a day did you work? 

Ten. 

Ten hours. How many days a week? 

Slx. 

Did you work ten hours every day? 
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EVery day. Sometime we make overtime. 

Now when, when you worked overtime did they still pay 

you straight time? 

Some, some time, you know, between the three years, 

-----,------. I work four, five day. 

Uh huh. 

Yeh, but at you know, them days when the people, mostly 

the foreigner and the people of this country here, when you go to 

job, you go to job to work. You could not, we was not allowed to 

make Cigarette. 

Uh huh. 

Smoke cigarette. You, you had to work. 

Yes. 

Not like a mule, but, you know, you had to know you 

were on the job. 

Well, you had ••••• 

And that was one another of us was willing to do. So 

one day down there on a Saturday night, they was pretty busy. And 

they had to, they had to cut mold. I, I don't know whether you un-

derstand ••••• when ••••• 

When you cut the edge of the mold? 

Yes, cut 'em off. And there was a lot of stuff in there. 

And Mr. Bragle (1), he just come from Scranton, Pennsylvania on the 

train here in the morning and had the horse a ready to take them up 

there. So he told a the foreman a ••••• Jim McHugh, he had a how (?) 

pick out. So that Saturday we work a half a day. Man, it was hot I 

So Mr. McHugh, our boss, came to us, me and a fellow named Dominic -

he d$ad now, if we want to work overtime and clean that place and 

take 'em up with the elevator. So next day it, it was -----, you 
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know. So we went there and man, we start to work and put 1t on 

wheelbarrow and put 'em on elevator, take off there. And we want 

a get done so we want a go down a river. It was close to river 

down there, you know. So we can a play a little down there. 

Uh huh. 

So we got done. ltV'erything's a done. We s1t down a 

little bit and clean that place off ------- first though, you know. 

Mr. B,.-----, the one who owns the a plant, "Hey boys, what you dOing 

1n there?tt And I was shocked (?) out and I was pulling everybody 

gets a break, you know. O.K. we f1red now. "What a you done? 

O.K., go on home." So we, we went a, a down to where we got the tick' 

you know. Everybody had their O'W'n tickets. To put a tick' in card 

you mark them 11ke - you go off. So we do that. So he give us 

fifty cents a.piece. He give me fifty cents and he give Dominic 

fifty cents. 

Uh huh. 

So we said, "Well, we done. Got to look for another 

job Monday." This was on a Saturday. So a Monday morning when we 

go baok to work, Mr. James McHugh told us that was good job we did. 

But he didn't - we told him, you know, that a, that a Mr. a.B-----­

come he goin' to fire us. So he was goin' work on the floor, gettin' 

ready to make, pick Bome are, you know. So we oan pur a pot of steel 

in. So that a Mr. B~----- came. Told Mr. Jim MoHugh - well, we don't 

know what he told him. Something like that he·s ••••••• time now 

we a going to get a fired. So he's oome a to us and say we did gOOd 

job. And we ~ind out he give us four hours overtime. That's a why 

he didn't want us to mark it in the tickets. 

Oh really? Uh huh. 

Glve us four hours overtime on there. That means sixty 



(18) 

cents. 

Yes, well, that was very nice of him. 

And the reason he give us that because he figure that 

the a work we did would a take us four hours or six more hours to 

do it and we did it quicker. He was watchin' us but we did not 

know that. See the point? 

Yes, I see. 

He didn't want us to lay down there. He want a to go 

home and not mark the ticket because he was goin' to mark the tickets 

for us and give us four hours overtime. Wouldn't you say it's good 

people? 

Yes, I would. r, I would say he was a very fine man. 

That's right. 

Now you worked there three years. A when you started 

working there, you were making fifteen cents an hour? 

left? 

Right. 

Were you still maktg fifteen cents an hour when you 

A ••• a ••• within the three year? 

Yes. 

No, I was well ••• a •••• I was young man and I could talk 

a better then than a r can now. I learned good. They put me in 

what they call "dry cell" and give me twenty-five cents ah hour. 

Uh huh. 

And of course, we didn't a work every day then. But a 

it was a enough. But then they give me special job on Saturday to 

clean up the crane, you know, on top and everything like that. BUt 

then on a July 6, nineteen hundred and a fifteen, I quit. And I 

went, I went on a Pennsylvania Railroad for fifteen cents an hour. 
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Well, why did y'~u do that? 

Because I don't like a inside work. Too much a dust. 

Yes. 

I was a, I was a raised to work outside on the farm 

and thing like that. So I like outside work. So I went to work 

for Pennsylvania Railroad July sixth, nineteen hundred and fifteen. 

And, that's all. I stood there till I retire November twenty-eight, 

nineteen a fifty-eight. 

A how was it a when you first a went to work for the 

railroad? What were the conditions llket 

Well, the conditions on the work was to a understand 

the job but I soon caught on. 

rails? 

Uh huh.. But were the - what did the job consist of? 

Well, a ••••• pick and shovel, hammer. orowbar, fork. 

What was it dOing then, just setting ties and laying 

Yeh, a •••• a ••• raisin' ties up with a plckunderneath, 

you know, rail all k1nd of work like that. But next a six months 

I was a making track watchman. Got him in inspecting track but a 

fifteen montbs after I was assistant traoks foreman. 

Uh huh. 

------- are you but least it was what I like beoause I 

obey my a foreman - the name was Jospeh Carter over New Castle; he's 

dead now - and a when I, when we - T saY'we now because ,all of. us .;. 

when we go there, we' go. there to work. 

Tell me ••••••• 

Not to kill, see? 

Yes, a, now ••••••• 

But to do, we a, we understood what, what we had to do 
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ten hour and a •••• a •••• today I can get ten of these hobos around on 

the corner which you don't have to go to street(?) because the next 

a day they no have a to go to work and somebody feed them. I a, I 

could a, I could a takin' em today on a railroad and give 'em a 

that a twelve foot - twelve pound hammer and drive 'em spike on a, 

on a oak, wood and they, and they (Chuckles) would a go - be out ot 

there in a half hour. They wouldn't be able to do it. That's right. 

Yes. A •••••• on the track crews were there mostly all 

Ita11ans or were they m1xed? 

M1xed up. 

A ••••• what k1nd of people did you f1nd on the track 

crew besides Italians and I guess there was some •••••• 

Well, there was few Ir1sh people, some colored people. 

How d1d they treat you as an Ita11an? How d1d thel' 

treat you as an Ita11an? 

A ••••• who you mean, the people here? 

The other people that you worked w1th, yes. 

Couldn't a, I couldn't a - you could not expect a to 

be treated any better than they a treat me. 

Did they •••••• 

But you have to pay back. 

Uh huh. 

You had, you had to be gentleman to be treated gentleman. 

D1d they ever oall ••••• 

But today you have to be criminal to be treated right. 

Yes, dld they ever call you names of any klnd? Did any-

bedy eve:r call you names of' any sort when you were there? No? 

No, I can say 1t, 1t was hard to call my own name. They 

generally call you a Dom1n1c.them day or, or John. That's - they 

thought all Ita11an that's all the, that's all the name they had 
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Dominic or John (Ohuckles). 

And that's what they called all the ••••• O.K. 

But they didn't go long because the very next word 

why ------- (?) 

Now, where you were living, were there mostly all 

Italians around the area where you lived? You lived in New Oastle 

here? 

Yes. 

Were they mostly all Italians where you were living? 

Do you mean in a, in the a community? 

Yes. 

No, mixed up- mostly Italians. 

In other words in the immediate area •••••• 

They mixed up with Irish. 

I see. 

Was very rew colored people in a, in a corner. I 

mean in a --------. 

O.K. 

No trouble. Never ha.d any trouble with anybody. I'm 

not bragging. 

Uh huh. 

All them day I been in New Castle I never had to call 

the police and nobody had to call the police £or me. 

O.K.now, a in 1915 World War One had started 1n Europe. 

What's that? 

In 1915 the First World War. 

Uh huh. 

Was going on in Europe. 

Yeh. 
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Italy was fighting Germany now. 

That's right. 

A •••• France and England were ••••• 

Yeh, I know. 

Hew did that atfect you over here? 

Didn't affect a me at all. Citizen of the United 

States give a me - I was a, I was a now a oitizen, United States 

citizen then, you know. They send a me the questionaire. I fill 

out the questions, they oome back, the post a, post a and class, 

class five, I think it was. That's all,1 - that's all. 

Were you ever drafted into the army? 

No sir. 

You never went into the army at all? 

No sir. 

O.K. Now, a •••• what was your life like here in those 

early days? Now certainly you were a young man, you enjoyed life 

I'm sure. Did you belong to any social clubs of any sort or any 

pelitical clubs? 

Never did. Somebody tried to put me in because we a 

had a men in a Wilmington. I wouldn't name tem ••••• a •••• he get 

those Polish people - mostly the Italian people. He was an Italian 

doctor. I'm not going to name him. Soon, soon's he know that the 

a Italians came from Italy, WhO's going to come, he was wait, he 

was waiting for them. He take a 'em in and take 'em to a Wilmington 

court and give you citizen paper - next a day. He, he - the same 

man - a come baok and give you envelope with a ballot inside and 

you put the name so you didn't know who's you was voting for, but 

not a, not a. my oousin, neither my brother. 

you •••••• 
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They no beoome a United States citizen and I know •. 

Uh huh. 

And when I became United States oitizen, I remember. 

See, I had, I had the oourse on the Pennsylvania Railroad and I 

'stand pretty good. And when I process my citizen paper - I for­

got what year it was - and you was supposed to go to sohool. So I 

did go to school over here, but a not a within two years. I just 

had to wait two years, you know, after you make an applicat10n. 

Uh huh. 

So •••• so the judge a his a name was a •••• I forgot 

now - a famous judge in Wilmington, sent a me the ------ oard, the 

card to go there on a Monday to get a exam to get Un1ted States 

paper. So Miss Bruetta (1), I don't know-.ther you heard about 

that or not - he was teacher. So a that Sunday night I went a to 

Wilmington to see what she was a teaching his a people. There 

was school in there. The Italians, all kind of nat10nal1ty and 

she was asking question. So I show her my card that I had from 

the court. "You," and she told me not go. "You cannot get the 

papers because you did not go to school." But I says myself, "My 

GOd, the questions you ask them people, I a, I a know already my 

heart." And a so I went. So we went in there and course I took 

a witness •••• to a •••• showed me here two year. So when the judge 

call me, and M1ssBruett sat r1ght along side the judge at the" 

table - that's a Miss Bruett, that schoolteaoher, you know. Cause 

she was s1t there and she look at me and a •••• I think she had a 

talk with a, with a the clerk in the court about a me, you know, 

I didn t t .. go to school. 80 t he clerk started to as.k a me, ask a 

me thirteen questions. Soon's I, soon's I ------ started walking 

through the court. Soon's he started to ask 'em, I answer 'em. 
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I answer lem. The last a quest10n he ask me try to, try to confuse 

a me. He says, "Where all this a b1g taxat1on," - he d1dn't say 

tax, taxat10n - "start1" And all l1ke that and how. Now when he 

start that I say, "House of Representat1ves." I - he says, "Why?" 

"Because •••• a •••• supposed to be close to the people and learn more 

what the people go1ng ------." He look at the judge and the judge 

say, "If everybody would a pass a exam1nat1on l1ke a th1s boy d1d, 

we, we no be here long." 

Uh huh. That' s good. So you got your c1t1zensh1p 

papers then? 

Ah ••••• been here, I forgot the year but been a long 

time ago. 

Yeh, uh huh. All r1ght now, what church d1d you go 

to 1n those days? 

What's that? 

What church? 

Catho11c churchS 

O.K. Where? Which one? 

New Castle. St. Peter. 

St. Peter's here 1n New Castle? D1d you ever go to 

church 1n Wilm1ngton? 

A ••••• I went a church 1n W1lm1ngton them days because 

at the f1rst, you know, was Ita11an pr1est, Ita11an - c.ouldn· t 

talk Ita11an 1n a St. Peter. 

In Wilm1ngton? 

I went there to.Confess1on. 

St. Peter's? 

But I went to Masses down here. Course I went to 

W1lmington for funeral, l1ke that. That's all. I went to church 
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down here. I go now every morning. Sometime I miss llke a that. 

When a you used to go to church ln W1lmlngton, St. 

Peter's, who was the priest who spoke Ita11an? 

I forgot, I forgot the name. In fact I don't know the 

name I know there was two, three 1n there who could talk Ita1ian. 

Ob.? 

I don't know whether, I don't know whether was Ital1an 

or was not. But then come Father - the one who bu1lt St. Anthony's 

Ohurch. What's his ••••••• 

tucker. 

Father Tuckers, that' s a r1ght. BUt then we had a lot. 

of pr1ests here by name of' rather Campbell and a he study Italian 

and he understood a pretty good. 

Vberets that, here in New Castle? 

New Castie, cause those days no ••• a ••• 

Yeh, •••• a •••• well, you always went to Mass here 1n 

New Castle. You never went to church here 1n Wllmlngton •••••• except. 

as you say for funerals or •••••• 
, . Funerals and a ••••• no, I dldn t have to go because ••••• 

Right. 

We got church right down here on a Fifth Street. 

O.K. Dld a were there any church sponsored organ1za­

t10ns here that you belong to like a Hely Name SOCiety or anything 

like that? 

What's that? 

Were there any church sponaored a societies llke the 

Holy Name in those days? 

Yeh, Holy Name Society. I;.dldn't belong but my brother 

did. 
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yOur brother belonged to it then? 

Yeh. 

But you never did? 

Never did, no. 

~hey let Italians belong to it then? 

At that time? 

Yes. 

Very few because they didn't understand but everyone 

pretty near everybody, but here in New Castle have a my brother, 

one my brother, and another fellow was a good Catholic. And the 

people who came to New Castle went to church, but the people, the 

Italian population outside like a Wilmington, Baltimore, and ••••• , 

very few went to church because a they didn't understand and some, 

you know, like that. But here New Castle most everyone who came 

here in New Castle went to churoh. 

Do you know anything about a how the people of Wilming­

ton were treated in Catholic Churches in Wilmington? Do you know 

how the people in Wilmington, before St. Anthony's Ohurch was built, 

do you know how the Catholics, the Italian Catholict\ were treated' 

~y •••• a •••• I know that very few Italians went to Mass 

in Wilmington any more and a still, still a everybody don't. 

Yes, I know but wasn't it true that. a for a time that 

St. Peter's Church in Wilmington the only Mass that the Italians 

could go tJ:> on Sunday was the nine o'clock Mass? 

I never heard that. 

You never heard of that: 

No. 

O.K. Uh, what a effect, what effect would you say that 

Father Tucker had on the Italians in Wilmington! What effect: would 
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would you say that he had on them? 

Well •••• a ••• first he a ••••• he's responsible to call 

mostly the old Italians to go back where we belong in the church. 

(Pause) See now, most these Italians come··not a New Oastle but a •••• 

outside a •••• around Holly Oak. I was work with them on the. track, 

foreman. 

Uh huh. 

Those Italians work with me on my gang on the track 

through the week Monday till Saturday don't go to garden. On a Sun­

day morning, go work in the garden. Now those Irish people, or 

Ohrist~an people, I can say, they, they.thought that a in Italy, 

people was work on a land on ~unday; which we never did, never did 

except if was a storm, you had the hay out, you know, you go get 'em 

or wheat or things like that. But never, never an land, but they 

did. On Sund.ay they, they didn't go to church. They say was Oatho­

lic but :t call them, "big-headed Oatholic." They., didn' t. they' didn't 

go, but if they came in New Oastle, t~ey had to go. They ask you, 

"When you going?" Say, "I'm gOing to Mass." "Are you a still a 

going. to Mass?" NOh, yeh." "What's the matter?" They say, some­

body, you know. 

O.K. NOW, a what changes did you notice that a took 

place in your lire, you know, the things that affected you during 

World War One? What ehanges can you remember? 

You mean a effect a me? 

Yes, well, what changes in life? Hbw did things 

change altogether? 

No, no, no change. 

You didn't feel there were any changes? 

No, no, no different except there was a more a, 
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There was more work? 

Mora jobs, yeh. 

Were there •••• 

A spend a more money. 

And the money was better, right? 

And it was a little bit better, yeh. 

Were there any other changes? 

Not a, not, not to me, no not •••••• 

How about after the war? 

Well at after the war, now have to go to politics. 

We have fel-, we have fellow, he was Director-General of the Rail­

roads of United States, the name of William McAdoo. He was a the 

son-in-law of Woodrow Wilson. 

Uh huh. 

You mow, Woodrow, he was President of United States. 

Uh huh. 

And a between a him and -------- the governor of New 

York, they fought in the convention. So neither one got the nomina­

tion for President. But they went, they went and ge~what they call 

a "Black Horse." They got fellow by name of Cox(?) I think his 

name waS and that cause Mr. Harding to be elect'. 

Uh huh. 

Mr. Harding die cause the reason he die because his 

party. put him in trouble. They claim he was in poker game and put 

a million dollars in there and make him win because they, they claim, 

I don't know whether it's true or not'., bu1lthat's what the a paper 

says. They show what they call "Teapot Dome." Do you know that? 

Yes. 
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The Teapot Dome Scandal. 

Then he die and Mr. Coolidge, his a ••.•• Vice-President, 

became President. 

O.K. and what happened ••••• 

That was in 1924. Then ••••• oome back again and he 

was nominated in nineteen hundred and twenty-eight and HOover ••••• 

so Hoover win and then --------- got 'em on television - not tele­

vision, radio them days. And he told us, "We lost, the Democratic 

lost the election and Republican win." Says, "Mr. Hoover w1ns, but 

remember Mr. Hoover's not President of the Republican Party. Hets 

President of the United States of America. He's a my President and 

your President and we have to respect him." 
I 

That's what he say. 

All right now, how d1d ProhIbition affect you? How 

did Prohibition effect ••• a •••• 

Not a bit. I didn't a, I didn't a buy a whiskey, I 

didn't a sell whiskey, so it didn't a bother me at all. 

Did you drink at all, any wine or anything? 

Well, yeh. We make some, it's a, we made a wine out 

of, out of •••• you oa1l it raisins, you know, dry grapes. 

Yes. 

We make a wine. Nobody ever bother us. 

Uh huh. 

Never sold any. We never buy any. 

You just made it for yourself, really, your Own eon-

sumption. Yes ••• a ••• when a, after Hoover got into oftice, the De-

pression started. 

What's that? 

Wh- after Hoover got into office, 
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Yeh. 

The Depression started. 

Depression started. 

Yes. 

There was a bunch of .thieves. 

What could you tell me about that period of time? 

What can I tell you? 

Yes. 

Hal Hal What can I tell you when I remember what I 

read in the paper or not but a somebody, you know, big stockholder 

a ••••• the •••• the market went broke. Somebody stole (?) the money, 

I don't know who, and the people started. Their, their children', 

they kill themself and a was a Depression. BUt a thank a God not 

for me because I work a pretty near every day, day here and day on, 

on the railroad and I make a enough money to a keep a my family and 

a thank a God here in this house and you can ask my wife, every day 

somebody come here for sandwich. No go to the other house, come 

here. Why? Why? ~Gus send me." So one a, one Sunday morning we 

run out a bread and there was in a hot a July, you know. I thought 

ltd stop in the garden - I still had garden, you know. And a my 

wife said, "I ain't got nothing all the bologna's gone. All the 

meat's gone. You tell them" - was seven of ,them- "I put on sweet 

peppers and tomatoes. I cook 'em lasagne and you go buy some bread." 

50 I went out and I told them what it was. Say "Anything, we hungry." 

Was seven white people. So (Chuckles) so I went down the garden and 

got 'em sweet pepper, pretty near half a bag. She put a big thing 

on the stove on to fry. And I don't know how it got in there - one 

h~t onel 

(Francis laughs) 
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So I went outside, put them in the batoh and they 

was waiting outside. And it got ready and I give it to 'em. And 

there was, great big, there was a great big hedge on the other side. 

rhey, they got their batoh and they went over there to eat. So I 

went over there and peek between a the hedge, see if they would 

eat them. Man, they were eating but tears come out their eyesl 

Oh my. 

So after while they oome back here. They said, "Please, 

give us a drink of water." So I says, nOh, my God ----- ----­

whatever you want." And they walk and. they a still they, "Thank 

you, God bless you. rhank you and God bless you." They gone. Three 

more, couple more come. I says. Get my wife ----- -----, 'huh? 

Oome on. 

The Depression was a very difficult time for a lot of 

people. 

I just, I just oall her to make you proof. He wouldn't, 

wouldn't a believe that. 

Oh, I believe you. 

That we have people come here for sandwich all the •••• 

(MRS. M.,) Oh yeh, oh yeh. I feed a those a people, yeh. When 

there was there was a, you know, Depression ••• a •• one a ••••• remem­

ber that old man come here. He was a rich a man before. Now he 

ask a me, you know, ror the water. Was so cold, he ask for the, you 

know, was frost, see. Where you come from? ------- Was old man. 

Remember old man? Was on Sunday. I remember it. flOh, give me 

peach, too." We had peach tree and I can a then all the time, you 

know, summer, see. (Spoken very fast) 

That's O.K. That's fine. 

(MRS. M.) Ohbhhhh. (Realizes she's on tape) (Laughs) 
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That's fine. So the Depression was a very diffioult 

time, wasn't it? 

I just oall her to prove, you know that. 

Oh, I believed you Mr. Maroozzi, but it's, it's good. 

I, I like ••••• did she want to join us? Mrs. Maroozzi, come sit. 

(MRS. M) 

(MRS. M) 

(MRS. M) 

No, no, that's all right. 

O.K. 

It's, ,you know. 

I no know some the answers. That's all right. 

All right, now •••• 

You, you remember everything? 

Oh yeh, he's doing - we're doing very, very nicely. 

Yes, we're dOing quite nicely here. 

(MRS. M) 

(MRS. M.) 

round a ••••• 

I no been here too long. Just you know. 

No, we're com1ng along fine. 

Yeh, O.K. 

All right now, when a the following election came a-

What election? 

Well, Hoover was in. 

You mean Hoover? 

After Hoover. HOover was in from 1928 to '32, right? 

Yeh, Franklin D. Roosevelt. 

Then Franklin Roosevelt came in. 

Uh huh. 

What changes did you notice then? 

What, what changes? 

Yes. 

Big changeS 

In what way? 
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In a way, well, a ••• I, I don't know. It's a hard: 

beoause the people you tell the truth it's heck for you. Frank11n 

D. Roosevelt everybody think he was good man and the reason a we 

cla1m he was good man a because before he went 1n there was De­

press10n and Depress10n cont"inue till we went a to the war. Oause 

he try to do someth1ng good. Somebody had to d,c 1t because United 

States was, was broke. 

Uh huh. 

So but a the change was a this. I'm not condemn, I 

just a say what a happened. It's a ~aot. A ••••• Woodrow W1lson 

and Harding, Cool1dge and Hoover did not recogn1ze a Russia. Now 

it's a changed because a claimed a Russia was Oommunism. !hat's a 

what they tell us but •••• 

Uh huh. 

No, my belief is it's the reaction of the capitalism 

which I'm not a against capital1st myself. That you got a dollar, 

you got that, you're capitalist. 

Yes. 

A •• • the ••• the communists never start the war. Never 

didl Nobody could prove the capitalist between 'em started the war 

and the United States of Amerio' went there. nineteen hundred and 

seventeen. I think it was April 7 to -------. They know what was 

going to happen to the part of England. The people who call themselves 

the law. Don't let it get you. I'm not talking about the poor people 

of England but the government of England used to be. So we went 

there un~er Wilson. General J. Pershing was Commander-in-Chief of 

Expeditionary Forces in Europe. WOOdrow W11son went to Europe when 

the Un1 ted States jo1n the, the League of Nations, they call it in 

them day_ But General J. Pershing oome back and he went a before 
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Oongress of the United States of Americ' and he was crying, took 

his hat off that no more should United States send young people out­

side Un1ted States to fight. So Congress pass a ~aw. Neutrality 

Law and th1s a law explain at the time 1f a, if a you can go over that 

a any nation between the trouble can come to the United St.tes ot 

Americ' and buy and go at their own risk. And the Amer1can Leg10n 

was established at the time that a no Amer1can soldier was go f1ght 

outside. But the way the capita11sts 1nEurape start to fight again 

among theirselt under President a - I'm a not a blaming the Presi­

dent directly you understand - it's a, it's a his advisor 11ke a 

----- ------ Johnson had it. So we go, I say we now, recognize 

RUssia because we, we a the United States, not the people of the 

United States, ------ ----- simple people saw what Hitler Was done. 

Therefore they allow that man Cburchill with two fingers up to come 

in this country, address the United States of - Congress ------ -----. 

And we give them seven billion dollars lend lease to England and 

fifty a to ------- and that wasn't all. So we call on Joseph a 

Stalin, the communists of Russia come out and help us. Help us to 

tight of side the communist - capitalist:because was capitalists 

that start the war, not the dommunism. But we call on a communism. 

So called a communism to fight on our side to beat the other side, 

capitalism. So now this a, .~his a, what a happened - but I'm a not 

a criticizing, Just a tact what happened and a, and a anybody with, 

with any idea can a, can a repeat this. 

Yes. 

But what a hap' atter that, Winston Ohurchill no long 

a ------ still more war. All the Democrat1c.Cabinet·put in there 

quit a Roosevelt like a James Farley, Secretary of State ••• a •••• 

Secretary of the Navy, Secretary of the Defense. Stimson was Re­

publican. Knox came a, became a Secretary of the Navy, Stimson 
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Secretary of the Army and a so on. And we went to war and atill 

they claim a be no more war. Like President Eisenhower. somebody 

ask him a question bout a six months go. Sa.y, "What you think a,bout 

this war?" And a Eisenhower just a one way and he say, "Where we: 

promise there be no more war." That's all he say. 

Huh •••••• 

No, no, just a minute. No, this a capitalism fought 

among theirselves and buy, buy a ------ a Russia to help a one side 

of capitalism to destroy the other side. All made there was no 

cap- no communist in Europe. By going in nineteen hundred and fif­

teen, I mean a seventeen, we made, we make the largest population in 

Asia and Europe. which is Russian, communists. And in nineteen hun­

dred and forty we went in there again and invited Russia to fight on 

our side. And we raise a heck in Europe:---------, Rumania, Albania, 

and -------. Half the communist.country didn't even know was com­

munist. Now today, we still a fighting communism. So I don't 

know. 

Yeh, now, I want to go back a few years. I want to, I 

want to go back to around 1923. Now during that period of time Mus­

solini was coming te power in Italy. 

What's that? 

Mussolini was coming to power in the early twenties in 

Italy. 

I think it was a •••••• I forgot what year. I think it 

was 1925, I think. 

Yah, this was about when he started. He started his rise 

around that time. 

Uh huh. 

What did you think of him? 



(36) 

Well, a" Mister, I don't know anything about Mussolini 

except what I read in the paper. 

All right. 

The idea which a the one a side of the capitalism call 

a Mussolini a "H1tler," "'rojo," ttd1ctator." He was because Musso­

lini was one to dr1vethe, the English, the foreigner in other words," 

out of the country. They wanted to run their own oountry and he did . 

••• ~e ••• reunite Italy. Done away with the Mafia, done away with the 

orooked and everything else. They wanted a •••••• they d1dn't want 

to go to war. They wanted to rule their own country but a happen a 

be that the in power of France and England was a in control over the 

finance. 

Uh huh. 

And then of' course we went to war. We destroy him. 

What, what did you think about his rise to power? What 

did your friends think? Did they th1nk he was a good man? 

all. 

Mussol1ni? 

Yes. 

Yes,he was good man but we not speaking about war and 

That's r1ght. 

We speaking about the ----- because a war and now, now 

we say. not a to say that President JOhnson's bad President. 

1'hat's r1ght. 

He' 8 a very good, a. very good Pres1dent. Ttlat 's a my 

op1n1on but he's get bad adv1sors. 

Uh huh. 

And a, and a, and a Mr. Johnson's should tell the Ameri­

can people who are these bad advisors and we should protect him and 



respect him as what he is. NOW remember now he's President of the 

United States. 

O.K. 

But he should say who is these bad advisors. 

Yes, did the events in Italy affect your life in anY'wa~ 

over here? 

What· s that? 

Did the events in Italy when Mussolini was rislng to 

power ••••• 

Yeh. 

Dld a those events there affect your 11fe in any way 

here ln thls country? 

In. United States of Americ'? 

Yes. 

No sir. 

In no way dld they affect you? 

No sir, no slr. no way. 

O.K. Did people, Italians, ever mention this to you? 

Did they ever say anything about Mussolini or ask you what you thought 

of him? 

Well. a, everybody was a talking about a men like Hitler, 

Tajo, so on, Roosevelt, --------; everybody was talking about that. 

But I'm not a speaking about a war. 

in Italy. 

Yes. 

Cause everybody a say that a Mussollni start a war there 

Yes. 

That's a what they claim. 

O.K. 



(Laughs) 

(38) 

But then, then a war, when a war come who's to blame? 

O.K. What effect did World War Two have on you? 

None. 

None whatsoever? World War Two didn't affect you? 

No, noth1ng, noth1ng at all. Anyth1ng you have to do. 

When you l1ve 1n a country, you ,Ought to l1ve under the law of the 

country or get out. And that's what's the matter with th1s c1t1zen 

of the United States today. I'm referring to the Jew.. I'm not 

against the Jew but the Jew don't want to l1ve as citizen of country. 

Now you take a Germany. I no approve of what Germany did to the Jew. 

No, I don'tl According to the papers, b~t the, the Jew 1s not a 

Jew was not a Un1ted States Jew or a Un1ted States c1t1zen. They 

d1dn't a k1ll the Ita11an, they didn't kill in Greece, they d1dn't 

kill the Amer1can. I mean the c1v1l1an, you know. They d1dn't k1ll 

1n Russ1a. In Germany they k1ll the Jew. When they k1ll the Jew, 

they k1ll a c1t1zen of Germany_ Why d1dn't these a l1ve up to a, 

to a the law of that country? Course I don't say what was r1ght 

what they d1d. You know, you know what I'm referr1ng to now? 

Yes. 

When Italy and Un1ted States of Americ' were declare a 

war with one another, I was a from a Italy. Now suppose 1n this 

country I was a spy for Italy; don't you think the United States 

would hang me? Huh? 

Yes, yes. 

When I point that out, '8. lot of people d.on· t understand. 

O.K ••••••• 

Now, now, I've been here all my, all my younger l1fe 

and older life now, you know. 



(39) 

Yes. 

I never see, although a I'm not against, but tell a 

truth - when you tell a truth you can repeat.- I never see a Jew 

to work on the traok cr stiok their hands in anyWhere, anywhere. 

But heok to sell of pieoe ot, of, ot (Ohuckles). I won't- say it. 

O.K. Well, a ••••••• 

A ••••• a •••• I tell you this. That's wlly, that's why 

we have a trouble now. If the Italians in this oountry would have 

been against the' United States' and a in tavor of' Italy and start to 

blow up the plants here, they would have been in trouble, wouldn't 

they' 

Yes, yes. 

But we was a •••• cit1zen of' United States. Somebody 

was not cit1zens of' Un1ted States, but we live here, stay here, 

work here and we wouldn' t take, any part s 1n except through the law. 

Yeh, what would you oonsider to be the greatest ohange 

1n the United States sinoe you oame here' 

B-out a what' 

Well, a, the grea-1n general what would you say to be 

the greatest change? 

The greatest a ohange a that a society lost a their 

honor. 

Society's lost its honor you th1nk? 

That's right. Because a the or1minal through the court, 

the, the lawmakers, the leg1slators no make no more laws today. They 

just get paid and the judge make the law. 

Uh huh. 

If I had my way, I'd do way w1th - f1rst~ thing - I do 

way w1th the Family Oourt because that's where they breed. Now, if 



(40) 

I had the ch1ldren today, of course I got a l1ttle grandchildren, 

1t I had ch1ldren under my care a.nd gets 1n trouble, I'm the father. 

1'm respons1ble for my ch1ldren, not to send to the Fam1ly C.ourt 

a Judge. 

Uh huh. 

That's a where, that's a where, that's a where they 

learn. 

Yes. 

When they go 1n there, they go tree. I see, I saw 

----- ---- street when they come back, they, they look l1ke ----­

because they, the Fam1ly Court, depend who you are. When you go to 

court, there's ne law any more. 

Yes. 

Depends on who you are and who you know and how much 

money you got. 

Have you evep desired to return to Italy? 

(Pause) No. 

Have you ever regretted com1ng to the Un1ted States? 

Not a. bit. 

O.K. 

I· was, I was ha.ppy to be in Italy and I am more happy to 

be in th1s a country - equall 

old days?" 

a everything. 

Have you ever longed tor a return to the "good old days?" 

Huh? 

Have you ever wanted or wished t~ go back to the "good 

You mean a you - what you think through the law? 

No, a now, in every respect and the way you lived and 



(41) 

A wna •••• to live •••• I would, I would like to go back. 

I would, I would a like to go back because I' less understand thls 

that the young people-you m1etlt be one of them •••••• 

O.K., go ahead. I'm 11stening. 

Cr1t1c1ze the old people here today and, and you, you.' 

talk to someone, "Wh.a.t,youwant to go back to horse and buggy, mister?" 

The hands of the people. the donkey, and the jackass, 3Ud the horse 

bu11t the United States of Amer1ca, not these other automobiles. 

They run on the streets today and you bu1ld the highway and people 

go 1n there and a get killed. And when they go to the hospital, they 

no, no got no insurance or noth1ng and 1~s us has to pay. 

Uh huh. 

So I'm a, I'm a like to go back to that because a I, 

I was more happ1ness then. 

Uh huh. 

Very happy. 

Uh huh. 

Today you cannot be happy because gets a dark, you don't 

know, you cannot go out. Lot of people frald to go to churches a 

after dark. Why? Because a the court not a pun1sh the crim1nals. 

That's 1t. 

Good. Do you have anyth1ng else you'd 11ke to add to 

what we've already been over? 

What's that? 

Do you have anyth1ng else you'd 11ke to add to what we've 

already been over? 

Hmmm, yah, well, I got a lot of th1ngs to say but I'm 

afra1d. 

(Laughs) No need to be afra1d. 



(42) 

I'm afraid because I, I think I say too much about this 

a lawmaker. I'm not criticizing anybody but it's a fact. 

Uh huh. 

You elect men in office, f ••• f ••• first thing you know 

he promise a lot of thing. Then you got to pay him to go to a ••• a ••• 

to, to state a legislation to the House. You got to pay his trans­

portation. When that's not enough. he adds two more cents on a mile. 

And when he got up there, pay two thousand dollar, three thousand dol­

lar his wife's salary. But the way they pUt past people. Nothing I 

Got to go yourself, got to pay your ------ wage to the judge when 

they makes the law today for a salary. 

Yes. 

Thousand dollars, that's all. that}s, that's, that's, 

that's all a different today. Them day you take a justice of the 

peace was an honor to have the job - not pay. And the people have 

respect for them and respect the people. Today you haven't got~no 

respect except a when you go to court with a, with a criminal. He's 

a gentleman. 

Yes. 

You the hobos 1 

Yes. 

(TAPE ENDS) 
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